
Simon W. Baker   B.Ed  MBA  MISPAL 

Chief Executive 
 
 
COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 
 
Date: 
 

Monday, 11 September 2017 

Time: 
 

2.00 pm 

Venue: 
 

The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Leek 

1 September 2017 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 6) 

4. Report of the Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel. (Pages 7 - 8) 

5. Declaration of Interests:  

 
 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

 

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 
 

7. Safeguarding Annual Report. (Pages 9 - 14) 

8. Policy on Enforcement of Environmental Crimes. (Pages 15 - 34) 

9. Work Programme (Pages 35 - 36) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme: 

 Chair’s Items 

 Members’ Items 
 

 
SIMON BAKER 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

Public Document Pack



 
Membership of Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor A Banks (Chair) Councillor T McNicol (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor C J S Atkins Councillor J Bull 
Councillor S Ellis Councillor E Fallows 
Councillor D Grocott Councillor B A Hughes 
Councillor K J Jackson Councillor P Jackson 
Councillor L D Lea Councillor M M Lovatt 
Councillor L A Malyon Councillor C Pearce 
Councillor J Redfern Councillor T Riley 
Councillor D Shaw Councillor P Wilkinson 
Councillor P Wood  

 



 

 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL 
MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

MONDAY 3 JULY 2017 
 
PRESENT: Councillor A Banks (Chair)  
 
 Councillors C J S Atkins, J Bull, B A Hughes, K J Jackson, 

M M Lovatt, L A Malyon, C Pearce, T Riley and P Wilkinson. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor M Bowen (Portfolio Holder for Communities) 

Councillor B Johnson (Portfolio Holder for Leisure, Sports, Parks, 
Countryside and Housing) 

Councillor D Ogden 
  
APOLOGIES: Councillors T McNicol, D Grocott and P Wood. 
 
   
 

54 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 
 
DECIDED: That the Minutes of the Meeting of the Panel held on the 27th March 

2017 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

55 REPORT OF THE SECRETARY OF THE POLICE AND CRIME PANEL. 
 
DECIDED: That the report of the Secretary of the Police and Crime Panel dated 

26th April and 8th May 2017 be noted. 
 

56 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 
 
There were none. 
 

57 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: 
 
There were none. 
 

58 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 
 
There were none. 
 

59 GRANT FUNDING - ESTHER JONES,TEAM LEADER, STAFFORDSHIRE 
MOORLANDS AND ESF VOLUNTARY SECTOR ADVISOR. 
 
The Panel received a verbal update on grant funding from Esther Jones, Team 

Leader, Support Staffordshire. Key points were highlighted, such as the need for a 

community group to be constituted and to apply for funding which most appropriately Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 3 July 2017 
 

 
 

matched the need. Applying for funding was a competitive process and for many 

applications substantial research and evidence was required. 

Support Staffordshire was able to provide one to one support to groups wishing to 

submit an application for grant funding. This could be carried out at Bank House, in 

Leek or onsite with the group itself.  

Some current key funds were highlighted such as:- 

- Staffordshire Community Foundation 

- Awards for All 

- South West Peak Park Partnership 

A comprehensive list would be emailed to members after the meeting. 

Members gave their views and experiences of applications for grant funding. Some 

had been more successful in obtaining grant funding from smaller funders rather 

than larger ones such as the National Lottery and Awards for All. It was explained 

that the sale of lottery tickets had reduced and the Lottery Fund monitored the 

allocation of grant funding. 

DECIDED: That the update be received. 

 
60 CONSULTATION ON A PROPOSAL TO INTRODUCE A PUBLIC SPACES 

PROTECTION ORDER IN THE AREA AROUND THE MILLENNIUM 
GARDENS, BIDDULPH. 
 
David Smith, Principal Officer Communities and Partnerships, introduced a report on 
the consultation on a proposal to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order in the 
area around the Millennium Gardens, Biddulph. 
 
The area around the Millennium Gardens attracted relatively high levels of anti-social 
behaviour. This had generally involved young people ranging between the ages of 
approximately 11 and 18 years of age. The behaviour affected legitimate users of 
the Millennium Gardens, shoppers at Sainsbury’s (including those using the car 
park), users of the nearby Methodist Chapel (which included community activities 
such as Girl Guides, Brownies and Rainbows) and general members of the public. 

A report was brought before members of the Community and Overview Scrutiny 
Panel on 13th February 2017 and Cabinet on 14th February 2017, which outlined a 
proposal to introduce a Public Spaces Protection Order to assist in preventing 
nuisance behaviour in and around the Millennium Gardens in Biddulph 

 
Following approval from Elected Members, the District Council carried out the 
necessary consultation, publicity and notification as required under s72 of the Anti-
Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. 

 
Responses supporting the introduction of the Public Spaces Protection Order were 
received from Staffordshire Police, Biddulph Town Council, Office of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner, and Staffordshire County Council. There were no specific 
comments on the individual prohibitions contained within the draft Order and no 
suggestion about including additional prohibitions to those consulted upon. 

Page 4



Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 3 July 2017 
 

 
 

Councillor Jackson advised the Panel, that since February there had been a 
noticeable reduction in the number of incidents of anti- social behaviour near 
Sainsbury’s. He also felt that the criminal issues could have been dealt with much 
sooner and that it had been a lengthy process to introduce the order. Councillor 
Johnson explained how despite the order taking some time to introduce, it had been 
worthwhile and a success in Leek. 
 
DECIDED:  That CABINET be RECOMMENDED to introduce a Public Spaces 

Protection Order to prevent on-going anti-social behaviour in and 
around the Millennium Gardens in Biddulph. 

 
61 WORK PROGRAMME 

 
At this point in the meeting, it was requested that senior officers from Your Housing 
were in attendance when the Panel scrutinised Your Housing Group. 
  
The Panel considered its Work Programme and agreed the items listed, subject to 
the following items being added:- 
 

- High Schools in the Moorlands as a whole (Closure of Room 21 at Leek High 
School, funding,  redundancy of teachers, impact and mental health support) 
 

- Care Homes, Nursing Homes &  Domiciliary Care   
 
DECIDED:  That the Panel’s Work Programme for 2016/17 be agreed. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at 3.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Staffordshire Police and Crime Panel 

Report of the Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel 

To All Member Authorities 

In accordance with agreed practice I am reporting on matters recently dealt with at 
meetings of the Staffordshire Police and Crime Panel in order to draw your attention 
to issues of wider interest and/or implications. 

24 July 2017 

Chairing my first Panel meeting it was helpful that the agenda included a number of 
Annual Reports on activity during 2016/17.  In addition to the reports by the 
Secretary on the allocation of Home Office Grant for the running of the Panel and 
on the management of complaints about the conduct of the PCC (of which none 
met the applicable criteria) we received the Police and Crime Commissioners own 
Annual Report on the delivery of his Strategy: Safer Fairer, United Communities for 
Staffordshire. 

Key issues in the Annual Report debated by us included:  

 Domestic Violence – The Deputy Commissioner is leading on initiatives to 
promote awareness of Domestic Violence and to provide support for victims.  
The Commissioner reported that through joint commissioning across the 
County and City of Stoke-on-Trent more front line services had been made 
available. Consistency in the quality of service was a key aim whilst retaining 
flexibility to respond to differing needs  

 MASH (Multi-agency safeguarding hub) – Responding to a request for 
assurances of continued support for the MASH, the Commissioner explained 
his wish to develop local delivery teams with the MASH serving as a ‘hub’ 

 Video Links with Courts – The Commissioner called for improved alignment 
between the Courts Service and the Ministry of Justice to facilitate better 
progress in this area 

 Modern Day Slavery - Public and agency awareness had been raised via a 
conference staged by the Deputy Commissioner.  Distinguishing between  
modern day slavery and low pay issues was a major challenge. 

 
We then considered the Commissioners Business Case for the Joint Governance 
of Police, Fire and Rescue Services in Staffordshire.  The report set out the 
governance options available under the Policing and Crime Act 2017: 
Representation, Governance and Single Employer, and explained the requirement to 
demonstrate how each could be in the interests of Efficiency, Effectiveness, 
Economy or Public Safety. Various criteria had been applied with the Governance 
Model being recommended in the Business Case and supported by the 
Commissioner. 

The County Council had recently referred the Business Case to a workshop of 
members to consider in detail.  The Police and Crime Panel decided to defer its own 
decision on whether to support the Case until they had participated in that workshop 
(see below). 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



The meeting continued by considering the Force and OPCC Joint Provisional 

Financial Outturn for 2016/17 which showed an underspend of £347k on the 

original budget of £180.638m.   

The OPCC had underspent partly due to lower than anticipated take up of grants and 

a longer lead in period for the IT contract with Boeing. 

The Force reported an overspend with a key contributory factor being a £1.4m 

overspend on staff costs particularly for front line staff. Much of our discussion was 

on staffing levels and the deployment of personnel with the Commissioner reporting 

that the new Chief Constable, Gareth Morgan wished to pursue projects which 

addressed mobility, flexibility, visibility and productivity. The pace of the changing 

demands on policing were obviously a major consideration. 

We received an update on the Commissioners Medium Term Financial Strategy 

(MTFS) for the period to 2020/21 hearing that the anticipated funding gap by that 

time would be £11.1m compared to the £10.5m forecast in 2016. A review of the 

funding formula aimed at giving Police funding a more stable basis, was to 

commence in 2018. On Treasury Management the Commissioner  reported on the 

need to increase the agreed Borrowing Limit in order to fund the planned capital  

expenditure strategy.  A review of costs had been carried out and savings identified 

in order to strengthen the Reserves in order to meet a number of one-off costs.   

We will be receiving an update on the MTFS at our November 2017 meeting. 

14 August 2017 Informal Workshop – PCC Business Case for Joint 

Governance of Police, Fire and Rescue Services in Staffordshire. 

As mentioned above we attended the County Council organised workshop where 

differing views on the proposed Governance Model were voiced.  Reference was 

also made to the pros and cons of the other options. 

The Police and Crime Panel members present at the Workshop concluded that they 

supported the Commissioner’s Business Case and he has been notified accordingly. 

 

David Williams 

Chairman – Staffordshire Police and Crime Panel 

 

 

Page 8



  

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

Report to Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

11 September 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Appendices Attached - None 
 
 

1.         Reason for the Report 
 
 The Council adopted its Child Protection Policy in 2006 and subsequently 

updated the policy to incorporate adults at risk of abuse and neglect in 2014 in 
response to the introduction of the Care Act 2014. A revised policy was agreed 
by members in 2016. This is the annual update to members on the Council’s 
action to meet its safeguarding duties. 

 
 
2. Recommendation 

 
2.1 That the Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel notes the actions taken 

by the Council in response to its safeguarding duties. 
 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The Council is committed to ensuring the safety and protection of 
people using its services. 

 
3.2 Legislation and statutory guidance make it necessary for the Council to 

ensure that it has policies and procedures in place to ensure that 
children and adults at risk of abuse and neglect are safeguarded when 
using services provided by or on behalf of the Council. 
 

3.3 The Council approved a Child Protection Policy in 2006 and 
subsequently updated the policy to incorporate adults at risk of abuse 
and neglect in 2014. The introduction of the Care Act in May 2014 

TITLE: Safeguarding Children and Adults at Risk of 
Abuse and Neglect 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Cllr Michael Bowen, Portfolio Holder for 

Communities 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Mark Trillo Executive Director (People) and 

Monitoring Officer 
   

WARDS INVOLVED:  All 

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



  

necessitated some changes and a revised policy was agreed by the 
Council in 2016. 

 
3.4 The Council has established an officer group, chaired by the Executive 

Director (People) to co-ordinate the Council’s response to safeguarding.  
 

3.5 Recent actions include: providing safeguarding training for staff 
members; reviewing procurement and contract management 
procedures; introducing a new staff safety system; and on-going 
provision of training for licensed taxi drivers. The Council has also 
supported the work of the Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger 
Communities Partnership to safeguard the local community. 

 
3.6 The Council was required by Staffordshire Safeguarding Children Board 

to complete a safeguarding audit (under s11of the Children Act 2004) 
and judged itself to have met each of the standards. 

 
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The Council is committed to providing quality services.  
 
 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 None. 
 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1  Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
The Council’s policy assists the Council to ensure the safety of 
children and adults at risk of abuse and neglect. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
The Council’s policy requires all staff with direct or indirect access to 
children or adults at risk of abuse or neglect to be vetted, checked and 
provided with an appropriate level of training. There is a requirement 
that every member of staff has an awareness of the Council’s policy. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
There are no specific implications. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
The policy commits the Council to ensure appropriate training for staff 
and members. 
 

Page 10



  

6.5 Legal 
 
The policy assists the Council to fulfil its statutory duties with respect 
to the protection of children and adults at risk of abuse and neglect. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
No specific implications. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
No specific implications. 
 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
Implementation of the policy will assist the Council to manage risks in 
relation to the impact of its services and activities on individual 
children and adults at risk of abuse and neglect. 

 
 
7.        Background and Detail 
 

7.1 The Council approved a Child Protection Policy in 2006 and 
subsequently updated the policy to incorporate adults at risk of abuse 
and neglect in 2014. The introduction of the Care Act in May 2014 
necessitated some changes and a revised policy was agreed by the 
Council in 2016. 

 
7.2 The Council’s officer group, chaired by the Executive Director (People) 

continues to meet on a quarterly basis to co-ordinate the Council’s 
response to safeguarding. In addition, the Executive Director 
represents the District Council on both Staffordshire’s Adult and 
Children Safeguarding Boards. The Council’s Principal Officer 
(Communities and Partnerships) also chairs the Staffordshire District’s 
Safeguarding Sub-group and represents the District Councils at the 
Executive meetings of the two Staffordshire Safeguarding Boards. 
These arrangements allow the Authority to demonstrate that it is 
meeting key statutory requirements of co-operating with relevant 
partners and also help the Council to develop and deliver its own 
internal responses to the safeguarding requirements. 

 
Activity since the last annual report 
 
7.3 The Council was required by Staffordshire Safeguarding Children 

Board (SSCB) to complete a safeguarding audit (under s11of the 
Children Act 2004) to help make sure that the Council’s functions are 
discharged having regard to the need to safeguard and promote the 
welfare of children.  

 
7.4 The audit required the Council to self-assess its performance against 

five standards and, as documented in the following table, the Council 

Page 11



  

judged itself to have met all of the standards. The Council, however, 
identified two areas of improvement in relation to safer recruitment 
(below). 

 
Standard Judgement Recommendations 

1 Accountability 
Structure 
 

Standard Met   

2 Listening to 
Children/YP 
 

Standard Met   

3 Information 
Sharing 
 

Standard Met   

4 Safe Recruitment Met with 
recommendations 

The Council identified two 
areas of improvement: 

 HR Officers to undergo 
safer recruitment training; 

 review and revise policies 
as required after training. 
 

5 Staff 
Training/Training 
 

Standard Met   

 
7.5 One of the Council’s HR Business Partners has now completed Level 4 

Safer Recruitment Training thus addressing the recommendation to 
emerge from the SSCB self-assessment, and the next step is to revise 
the Council’s recruitment procedure to incorporate recommendations 
and good practice from the training.    

 
7.6 The Council also completed a similar self-assessment following a 

request by the Staffordshire and Stoke-on-Trent Adult Safeguarding 
Partnership. This asked the Council to rate itself against a number of 
criteria grouped under five main headings: Leadership, Management 
and Governance; Safe Recruitment and PiPOT (Person in Position of 
Trust) Management; Policy and Procedure; Training and Workforce 
Development; and Practice. The Council judged itself to have met each 
of the criteria. 

 
7.7 Further Level 1 safeguarding training for frontline staff has been 

arranged for September 2017. Once this has been completed, all 
relevant frontline staff members will have been trained (including any 
new starters). On-line training has also been facilitated for eight 
contractors via the Staffordshire Safeguarding Children Board. 

 
7.8 The Council has introduced a new system for flagging customers who 

may pose a potential risk to the psychological, mental, physical or 
emotional wellbeing of employees or agents of the Council. This system 
is designed to both safeguard employees and to assist the Council to 
meet its general duties for staff safety under the Health and Safety at 
Work Act 1974. The Council has also developed a policy outlining the 

Page 12



  

steps that will be taken to support domestic abuse victims at work, 
which it intends to bring forward for approval in autumn 2017. 

 
7.9 The Council has carried out a review of its procurement and contract 

management processes to ensure that adequate safeguarding checks 
are included. All new procurement activities require contractors and 
their employees to agree to the conditions of the Council’s safeguarding 
policy and this includes ensuring that relevant checks have been made 
of any contractor’s staff involved in undertaking regulated activities. In 
addition, reviews of all existing or historic arrangements that fall within 
or outside of formal contractual arrangements are being undertaken to 
ensure that all contractors or subcontractors employed by the Council 
have agreed to the conditions as set out within the Council’s 
Safeguarding Policy and that their employees have had the appropriate 
checks undertaken. Where contractors or subcontractors fail to abide by 
our policy and its requirements, the Council will cease use of their 
services.  

 
7.10 The revised Hackney Carriage and Private Licensing Policy was 

adopted by the District Council in January 2017. In accordance with the 
policy, any safeguarding issues relating to taxi drivers will be fully 
investigated and where appropriate the driver will be suspended and 
referred to the Licensing Sub Committee. The Council has continued its 
programme of providing safeguarding training for taxi drivers operating 
in the District and 95% have now been trained. Further training will be 
provided for the remaining drivers in the coming months.  

 
7.11 One of the priorities of the Moorlands Together Safer and Stronger 

Communities Partnership has been support for vulnerable people. Work 
to support this priority has included: 

 
• Commissioning Connected Youth CIC to raise awareness of child 

sexual exploitation within the district using an outreach approach 
and engaging young people in diversionary and preventative 
activities. The project also offered advice and information to young 
people in relation to vulnerability and risk, sexual health, drugs and 
alcohol, mental health and coping with life circumstances, eating 
disorders, friendships, keeping safe online, knowing their rights as 
young people and peer support 

• Funding a Police Link Worker to work with victims of domestic 
abuse to assist in the development of safety plans, which helps 
safeguard them from further abuse and harm. 

• Funding the Safe & Sound target hardening service (additional 
security measures) for both those who are vulnerable to crime or 
have been a victim of crime.  

• Funding the Sanctuary Scheme to increase the security of the 
homes of domestic abuse victims.  

• Providing information and advice on illegal money lending. Illegal 
money lending often sees unlicensed lenders target vulnerable 
people 

 

Page 13



  

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Background Papers Location 

 
Democratic & Community Services 
Moorlands House 

Contact details 
 
David Smith  
Principal Officer Communities and 
Partnerships 
david.smith@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
01538 395400 ext 4165 

 

Page 14

mailto:david.smith@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


  

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 

Report to Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

 11 September 2017 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Appendices Attached 
 
Appendix A - Policy on Enforcement of Environmental Crimes 

 
 

1. Reason for the Report 
 

 The report presents a revised policy that aims to further improve the Council’s 
approach to tackling environmental crimes such as littering, fly-tipping and dog 
fouling.  

 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel notes the content of 
the report.  

 
2.2 That the Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel recommend Cabinet 

approval of the proposed Policy on Enforcement of Environmental 
Crimes. 
 
 

3. Executive Summary 
 

3.1 The Council revised its approach to responding to environmental crimes 
in December 2014 with the aim of adopting “a more flexible approach 
through the multi skilling of a large number of employees with existing 
enforcement capability within their job roles”. 

 

TITLE: Policy on Enforcement of Environmental 
Crimes 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Arthur Forrester, Deputy Leader and Portfolio 

Holder for Environment 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Mark Trillo Executive Director (People) and 

Monitoring Officer 
   

WARDS INVOLVED: All 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



  

3.2 This approach has been reviewed and has resulted in the development 
of a revised Policy on the Enforcement of Environmental Crimes. The 
policy is provided at Appendix A. 

 
3.3 The policy suggests adopting a triple-track approach to responding to 

environmental crimes involving education, enforcement, and cleansing. 
 
3.4 Under the new policy, enforcement activity will primarily be carried out 

by the Council’s Environment Enforcement Officers and the Geographic 
and Specialist Service Supervisors for Street Cleaning, Parks and 
Waste. Responsibility for the enforcement of environmental crime will 
move from Regulatory Services to Democratic and Community Services 
to strengthen the link between the response to environmental crime and 
other forms of anti-social behaviour, and also to further develop the 
links to other locality-based activity delivered by the latter service. 

 
3.5 Officers will normally issue a fixed penalty notice where an offence of 

abandoning a vehicle, littering, fly-tipping, fly-posting or dog fouling has 
occurred and may also consider recovering the cost of removal. There 
are a number of situations when the Council would consider that the 
issuing of a fixed penalty notice may not be appropriate and instead 
would seek to prosecute under the relevant legislation.  

 
3.6 Hot spot maps of reported environmental crimes will be produced on a 

quarterly basis to help guide activity and, in addition, the Geographic 
and Specialist Service Supervisors will provide a monthly briefing 
highlighting areas for the enforcement officers to prioritise. 

 
3.7 The policy sets out a formal approach to payment by instalments, in the 

interests of fairness and consistency, with the aim of both assisting 
those whose circumstances would make it difficult for them to pay the 
full amount within 14 days and also as a means of improving payment 
rates. 

 
3.8 The policy also reiterates the Council’s approach to environmental 

crimes committed by young people aged 17 or under. 
 
 

4. How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 

4.1 The proposed policy will assist the Council to meet its corporate priority 
of protecting and improving the environment. 

 
 
5.       Options and Analysis 
 

5.1 To approve the policy on environmental enforcement and the revised 
approach to enforcement activity described therein (recommended). 

 
5.2 Not to approve the policy on environmental enforcement and to 

continue with the existing approach (not recommended). 

Page 16



  

 
 

6. Implications 
 

6.1  Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
The policy will assist the Council to improve community safety by 
addressing behaviour that adversely affects the local environment. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
The arrangements introduced in December 2014 resulted in a 
relatively large number of people being granted the power to enforce 
against environmental crimes. These powers have not been, however, 
fully utilised and it has been recognised that it is difficult for officers to 
carry out enforcement in a consistent and appropriate manner when 
they are not involved in enforcement action on a regular basis. Under 
the revised policy, responsibility for enforcement is focussed on a 
smaller number of suitably equipped officers with the capacity and 
appropriate training to undertake enforcement activity.  
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
There are no specific implications. Individual services will, however, 
be required to consider the impact on individuals when carrying out 
enforcement activity in line with the Council’s General Policy on 
Enforcement. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
None – any costs will be met from within existing service budgets. 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998, as amended by the Police and 
Justice Act 2006, places an obligation on the Authority to work in 
partnership to reduce behaviour adversely affecting the local 
environment. 
 
The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 provides 
local authorities with the power to address certain types of 
environmental problems. The Community Protection Notice is a broad 
power that replaces litter abatement notices, litter clearing notices and 
street litter clearance notices that were previously available under the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990, and defacement removal notices 
under the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003. Public Spaces Protection 
Orders replace, amongst other things, dog control orders under the 
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 and this again is 
intended to be a broad power to tackle activities that affect the quality 
of life.  
 

Page 17



  

Individual environmental offences are covered by specific legislation, 
in particular the Environmental Protection Act 1990 which prohibits the 
unauthorised or harmful deposit, treatment or disposal of waste (fly-
tipping), and littering. 
 
Local authorities have the power to issue fixed penalty notices for 
environmental crimes primarily under the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990, the Clean Neighbourhoods Act 2005, and Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. 
 

6.6 Sustainability 
 
Not applicable. 
 

6.7 
 
 
 

Internal and External Consultation 
 
None. 
 

6.8 
 
 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
The policy will assist the Authority to manage the risks associated with 
carrying out enforcement activity. In particular, restricting the number 
of enforcement officers will allow the Authority to reduce the risks by 
ensuring that they are appropriately equipped and trained. 

 

7. Background and Detail 

Current Approach 

7.1 The Council revised its approach to responding to environmental crimes 
in December 2014 and Councillors were provided with an update on 
work towards implementing the new arrangements in June 2016. In 
brief, the proposed approach was to “adopt a more flexible approach 
through the multi skilling of a large number of employees with existing 
enforcement capability within their job roles” with an intention to roll out 
the key elements of an enviro crimes team approach by July 2016. 

 
7.2 Training was provided to frontline officers and a focussed patrol day 

took place in June 2017 to supplement the activities of the two 
dedicated environmental enforcement officers. The patrol activities 
included stencilling in priority areas for dog fouling and high profile 
patrols in Leek, Cheadle and Biddulph. 

 
Performance 

7.3 The table below shows requests for service over the last five financial 
years. As can be seen, the number of reports of abandoned vehicles 
has increased significantly in recent years. 

 
2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

Abandoned Vehicle 50 52 51 128 201 

Page 18



  

Dog Fouling 305 312 289 280 215 

Fly-tipping 379 424 503 558 526 

Graffiti 3 4 14 29 14 

Request for Street Cleaning 442 492 498 531 501 

 

7.4 The number of fixed penalty notices issued for dog fouling and littering 
in the District are shown in the following graph.  

 
 

Next Steps 
 
7.5 Appendix A proposes a revised policy aimed at further developing the 

Council’s approach to addressing environmental crimes.  
 
7.6 The policy suggests adopting a triple-track approach to responding to 

environmental crimes involving:  
 

• Education - educating the public, such as through signage, use of 
warnings, action days and publicity campaigns; 

• Enforcement – environmental crimes are illegal, which means 
that enforcement action will be pursued where necessary and 
appropriate; and 

• Cleansing – the Council carries out a routine programme of 
cleansing adopted highways and other public spaces, such as 
parks and play areas. This is supplemented by responsive action 
to reported problems and extra sweeping when needed (for 
instance in busy visitor areas or after major events). 

 
7.7 Under the new policy, enforcement activity will primarily be carried out 

by the Council’s: 

 Environment Enforcement Officers; and 

 Geographic and Specialist Service Supervisors for Street 
Cleaning, Parks and Waste. 

 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fi
xe

d
 p

e
n

al
ty

 n
o

ti
ce

s 

Litter Dog fouling

Page 19



  

7.8 Responsibility for enforcement of environmental crime will move from 
Regulatory Services to Democratic and Community Services to 
strengthen the link between the response to environmental crime and 
other forms of anti-social behaviour, and also to further develop link to 
other locality-based activity delivered by the latter service. 

 
7.9 The work of the enforcement officers should assist the Council’s Street 

Scene Service (AES in the future) to keep our neighbourhoods clean by 
focussing on priority areas and thus reducing the need for cleansing. It 
is proposed that hot spot maps of reported environmental crimes be 
produced on a quarterly basis to help guide activity. In addition, it is 
proposed that the Geographic and Specialist Service Supervisors 
provide a monthly briefing highlighting areas for the enforcement 
officers to prioritise. 

 
7.10 Officers will normally issue a fixed penalty notice where an offence of 

abandoning a vehicle, littering, fly-tipping, fly-posting or dog fouling has 
occurred. The Council may also consider recovering the cost of 
removal. There are a number of situations when the Council would 
consider that the issuing of a fixed penalty notice may not be 
appropriate and instead would seek to prosecute under the relevant 
legislation. This includes where the offender has previously been issued 
with a fixed penalty, or has been convicted, for an environmental 
offence; for large-scale environmental crimes; or where the offender is 
aggressive to officers. 

 
7.11 A number of local authorities offer the option of payment by instalments 

in cases where the individual would find it difficult to pay the full amount 
of the fixed penalty within the required 14 day time period. According to 
DEFRA guidance on fixed penalty notices, such approaches can assist 
in improving payment rates. The Council has given permission to pay 
instalments on a case-by-case basis but has lacked a clear policy on 
this matter. 

 
7.12 It is suggested that the Council adopts a formal approach to payment by 

instalments, in the interests of fairness and consistency, with the aim of 
both assisting those whose circumstances would make it difficult for 
them to pay the full amount within 14 days and also as a means of 
improving payment rates. 

 
7.13 The policy reiterates that if the Council intends to carry out targeted 

enforcement activity close to a school in response to reported problems, 
then they will endeavour to undertake an education initiative at the 
school prior to enforcement patrols taking place. The Council, however, 
recognises that there may be occasions where an enforcement officer 
observes a young person aged 17 or under littering during the course of 
their normal duties and not as part of targeted action. The Council will, 
however, in appropriate cases seek to provide an alternative to paying a 
fixed penalty for those aged 16 or under at the time of the offence. 

 

Page 20



  

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (People) and Monitoring Officer 
 
 
Background Papers Location 

 
Democratic & Community Services 
Moorlands House 

Contact details 
 
David Smith  
Principal Officer Communities and 
Partnerships 
david.smith@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk 
01538 395400 ext 4165 

 

 

Page 21

mailto:david.smith@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

Amended MT 29.8.17 

Policy on Enforcement of Environmental Crimes 

 

1 Introduction 

This policy has been produced to support the Councils’ commitments to protect and 

improve the environment. The Councils believe that: 

 Tackling environmental crimes is a priority for local communities in both local 

authority areas.  

 Environmental crimes are unsightly and make our towns, villages and other 

areas less attractive for residents and visitors alike. 

 Environmental crimes can result in negative perceptions of an area and make it 

feel unsafe and uncared for. 

 Maintaining clean neighbourhoods benefits the local economy by improving the 

image of the area and thereby attracting more visitors and customers, 

encouraging investment in local businesses, increasing house prices and 

assisting businesses to retain employees. 

 The cost to local residents of clearing up after environmental crime is 

considerable. 

 Waste can take years to degrade and can be costly to remove. It can be 

harmful to health and, for example, lead to cuts, puncture wounds and 

subsequent infections for children and others that come into contact with it. 

Waste can cause harm to wildlife and habitats, and can attract pigeons and 

vermin such as rats. 

The Councils will adopt a triple-track approach to responding to environmental 

crimes involving:  

• Education - educating the public, such as through signage, use of warnings, 

action days and publicity campaigns; 

• Enforcement – environmental crimes are illegal, which means that 

enforcement action will be pursued where necessary and appropriate; and 

Page 23



 

2 
 

• Cleansing – the councils carry out routine programmes of cleansing adopted 

highways and other public spaces, such as parks and play areas. These are 

supplemented by responsive action to reported problems and extra sweeping 

when needed (for instance in busy visitor areas or after major events). 

The purpose of the policy is to set out the Councils’ approaches to education and 

enforcement in relation to environmental crime. It is intended to ensure that each 

Council follows a standard approach and, in particular, that the approach to 

enforcement of environmental crimes is consistent, balanced, fair, transparent and 

proportional.  

The policy recognises that each incident of environmental crime is unique and must 

be considered on its own merits but sets out the general principles that will be 

applied by the Council’s officers.  

This document should be read in conjunction with the Councils’ General Policy 

Statements on Enforcement and any specific policies on individual environmental 

crimes.  

2 What is Environmental Crime? 

Environmental crime is generally used to describe any illegal activity that harms the 

environment1 but there is no universally agreed definition. In the broadest sense, it 

includes waste crime and activities such as wildlife crime, illegal resource extraction, 

and fraud around sustainability and carbon trading permits. In addition to 

environmental impacts, it can also have serious human health and social impacts. 

High Peak Borough Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council have 

adopted a pragmatic approach to defining environmental crime based upon their 

remit and concerns of residents. The Council defines environmental crime as 

encompassing: 

 Abandoning vehicles; 

 Dog fouling; 

 Fly-posting; 

 Fly-tipping;2 

                                                           
1
 Parliamentary Office of Science and Technology (2017). 

2
 ss 33 and 34 Environmental Protection Act 1990. 

Page 24



 

3 
 

 Graffiti; and 

 Littering. 

Table 1 shows the number of each environmental crime type reported to the Council 

over the past three financial years. 

Table 1 Levels of Environmental Crime 

 

High Peak Staffordshire Moorland 

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 

Abandoned Vehicle 88 182 267 51 128 201 

Dog Fouling 366 323 282 289 280 215 

Fly-posting 17 17 11 5 10 15 

Flytipping 521 567 567 503 558 526 

Graffiti 9 14 24 14 29 14 

Request for Street 

Cleaning 
657 556 622 498 531 501 

 

4. The Councils’ Approach to Education 

The Council believes that education plays an important role in tackling environmental 

crime. It encompasses the whole range of ways in which the Council communicates 

about environmental crime from large scale media campaigns to the use of small-

scale messages. Messages may be aimed broadly at raising general awareness, or 

targeted at specific groups of people such as students, drivers, consumers of food 

on-the-go, etc. 

The Council has taken part in a number of national campaigns in recent years, such 

as those delivered by Keep Britain Tidy, and will continue to look for opportunities to 

support such campaigns locally. 

The Council will also use small-scale messages to respond to locally identified 

problems. For example, the Council has developed the Dog Watch Campaign, which 

consists of signage, postcards for delivery to people’s homes, banners, and 

materials to use in schools. Typically the campaign is run in a small, targeted area 

for a period of 3-4 weeks before being moved into another area to maximise impact. 

Page 25



 

4 
 

In addition to the Dog Watch Campaign material, the Council has developed various 

other signs, such as relating to littering from vehicles, which can be used to respond 

to environmental crimes. The Council will continue this approach to respond to 

specific problems and will develop further bespoke material as needed. 

Historically, the Council has co-ordinated multi-agency clear-up days that have been 

primarily led by the Community Safety team, but which have often had a strong 

environmental focus. These have gone by various names such as action days/weeks 

and beat sweeps. A key element has been engaging local communities in litter picks 

and other environmental improvements. Street Scene has also assisted local 

community groups that wish to carry out their own clean-ups by providing litter picks 

and collecting bagged waste afterwards. 

The Council will continue to use this approach to target action in hot spot areas that 

require more intensive action. 

5 The Council's Approach to Enforcement 

Experience has shown that enforcement action is most effective where it is targeted 

in the right places at the right times, and carried out by suitably equipped officers 

with the capacity and appropriate training to undertake enforcement activity. 

Enforcement activity, particularly the issuing of fixed penalty notices face-to-face, 

can often lead to confrontational situations. It can be difficult for officers to apply 

council policies in a consistent and appropriate manner if they are not involved in 

enforcement action on a regular basis and not all council officers have the necessary 

temperament for enforcement activity. The Council also recognises that the safety of 

officers is paramount. 

For these reasons, enforcement activity will primarily be carried out by the Councils’: 

 Environment Enforcement Officers; and 

 The Geographic and Specialist Service Supervisors for Street Cleaning, Parks 

and Waste.  

Each officer will be allocated with a body-worn video camera for use when carrying 

out enforcement activity. This will be switched on, where possible, as soon as the 

officers suspect an offence has been committed, or is about to be committed, and 

will be kept on until the interaction has ended. For the avoidance of doubt, the lack of 

Page 26



 

5 
 

a body worn video camera, or failure to record on a particular occasion, would not 

preclude the council from pursuing enforcement action if there is sufficient evidence 

and it is in the public interest to do so. The cameras are intended to both assist with 

evidence gathering but also to protect the officer from physical of verbal abuse and 

can be used in the event of complaints against an officer. 

Other Council officers, particularly operational officers working in the community, will 

be expected to provide intelligence to enable enforcement activity to be effectively 

targeted. This could include providing evidence of people discarding litter from 

vehicles. A webform has been developed to allow officers to report information. 

Street Scene currently provides the initial response to reports of fly-tipping. Officers 

examine the fly-tipping for any evidence and, where such evidence exists, record the 

information and then pass it to the Environment Enforcement Officers to take 

forward. This arrangement will continue following formation of Alliance 

Environmental Services (AES). 

Operational Service staff members will also be expected to assist the Council to 

respond to reports of abandoned vehicles by checking whether vehicles remain in 

the reported location and providing descriptions and photographs of reported 

vehicles when requested to do so by the Environment Enforcement Officers. 

Targeting Activity 

It is important that enforcement activity is targeted in those areas where 

environmental crimes are occurring. The council keeps records of problems reported 

by members of the public and these can be analysed to produce maps of problem 

areas. Information about ‘hot spot’ areas can also be provided by councillors and 

frontline council workers. 

It is proposed that hot spot maps of reported environmental crimes be produced on a 

quarterly basis to help guide activity. 

The work of the enforcement officers should assist the Council’s Street Scene 

Service (AES) to keep our neighbourhoods clean by focussing on priority areas and 

thus reducing the need for cleansing. The Geographic and Specialist Service 

Supervisors will provide a monthly briefing highlighting areas for the enforcement 

officers to prioritise. 

Page 27



 

6 
 

Response 

Officers will normally issue a fixed penalty notice where an offence of abandoning a 

vehicle, littering, fly-tipping, fly-posting or dog fouling has occurred (Appendix A).. 

The Council may also consider recovering the cost of removal. This reflects the zero 

tolerance approach being taken by each Council to tackle environmental crimes. The 

FPN is issued as an alternative to the person being prosecuted through the courts. If 

an FPN is issued then the offender has 14 days to discharge their full liability for the 

offence by paying the FPN. The Council will normally seek to prosecute if someone 

fails to pay the FPN within the specified timescale. 

Where the defacement of an area by waste is detrimental to the amenity of the 

locality then this would normally be dealt with through a Community Protection 

Notice or under Section 215 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. This 

includes areas where there is recurrent defacement by litter of open land in the 

vicinity of commercial or retail premises. A breach of a Community Protection Notice 

may result in either a fixed penalty notice being issued or prosecution. Failure to 

comply with a Section 215 Notice is an offence and would be dealt with by means of 

a prosecution. 

If a person fails to comply with a Community Protection Notice then the authority also 

has the power to apply to court for seizure or forfeiture of items used in commission 

of the offence. 

There are a number of situations when the Council would consider that the issuing of 

a fixed penalty notice may not be appropriate and instead would seek to prosecute 

under the relevant legislation. This includes: 

• Large-scale depositing of waste items, which will normally be dealt with by 

means of prosecution for littering (Section 87 Environmental Protection Act 

1990), fly-tipping (Section 33 Environmental Protection Act) or failure to keep 

proper control of controlled waste (Section 34); 

• When the offence is committed by someone that has previously received a 

fixed penalty notice for the same offence; and 

• Where the offender is aggressive to the Enforcement Officer (or other staff 

member) and/or refuses to provide their name and address.  

Page 28



 

7 
 

Payment by Instalments 

A number of local authorities offer the option of payment by instalments in cases 

where the individual would find it difficult to pay the full amount of the fixed penalty 

within the required 14 day time period. According to DEFRA guidance on fixed 

penalty notices, such approaches can assist in improving payment rates. The 

Council has given permission to pay instalments on a case-by-case basis but has 

lacked a clear policy on this matter. 

It is suggested that the Council adopts a formal approach to payment by instalments, 

in the interests of fairness and consistency, with the aim of both assisting those 

whose circumstances would make it difficult for them to pay the full amount within 14 

days and also as a means of improving payment rates. 

Payment by instalments will be offered if requested by the alleged offender and 

provided that they can adequately demonstrate to the authority that one or more of 

the following criteria applies: 

 A fixed penalty notice has been issued to a young person (aged under 18); 

 The alleged offender is on benefits; and 

 There is a proven case of financial hardship. 

The law in relation to prosecuting summary offences in the magistrates’ court means 

that an authority has six months from the date of an offence within which to 

commence proceedings by laying information in the court. If it fails to do this within 

the six-month period, then prosecution, following non-payment of a fixed penalty 

notice, cannot be taken. It is, therefore, recommended that instalment payments be 

spread over a maximum of three months to retain the option of prosecuting for the 

offence if the alleged offender fails to pay all instalments. 

If the offender pays the initial instalment but then fails to pay one or more of the 

subsequent instalments then the local authority would normally seek to prosecute 

the individual for the original offence. 

The instalment amounts are set out in Appendix B. 

Page 29



 

8 
 

Young People 

The Councils recognise that all sections of society can be responsible for littering 

and that the age of criminal responsibility in England is 10. The Councils also 

recognise that littering can be a particular problem around schools and along routes 

to school premises. 

If the Councils intend to carry out targeted enforcement activity close to a school in 

response to reported problems, then they will endeavour to undertake an education 

initiative at the school prior to enforcement patrols taking place. The Councils, 

however, recognise that there may be occasions where an enforcement officer 

observes a young person aged 17 or under littering during the course of their normal 

duties and not as part of targeted action. 

The Councils think that it is important that officers respond to littering by young 

people and send out the message that littering is unacceptable and will not be 

tolerated. If the Council does not take action in such circumstances then it may be 

seen to be: i) giving out the wrong message and suggesting that the law does not 

apply to young people, and ii) not adequately responding to public concern about 

littering. Officers will, therefore, issue fixed penalty fines to anyone aged 11 or over 

(corresponding to secondary school age) who is found to commit an offence or 

prosecute as described above. 

The Councils will, however, in appropriate cases seek to provide an alternative to 

paying a fixed penalty for those aged 16 or under at the time of the offence. A fixed 

penalty notice will be initially issued but will be cancelled, and the Council would not 

take any further action in relation to the offence, if the offender attends and 

completes a one hour educational session arranged by the Council. Such sessions 

will normally be offered once a month on a week-day evening at one of the Councils’ 

main offices. Offenders will not be provided with a choice of sessions but would be 

expected to attend the next available session. If the offender does not attend the 

session then the fixed penalty notice will stand and the individual may face 

prosecution if the penalty is not paid within the specified timescales.  

 

  

Page 30



 

9 
 

Appendix A Fixed Penalty Notice Penalties 

Offence Legislation Penalty 

if paid within 

10 days 

Full  Maximum on 

conviction 

Abandoning a 

vehicle 

s 2(1)(a) / 2A Refuse 

Disposal Amenity Act 

1978 

£150 £200 £2,500 

Criminal 

Damage/flyposting 

S1 Criminal Damage 

Act 1971/ s131 / 132 

Highways Act 1990 / 

s224 Town and 

Country Planning Act 

1990 and s 43/ 44 Anti-

Social Behaviour Act 

2003 

£50 £75 £2,500 

Failure to comply 

with a Community 

Protection Notice 

S 48/52 Anti-Social 

Behaviour, Crime and 

Policing Act 2014 

£75 £100 £2,500 for an 

individual 

£20,000, in the 

case of a body 

Failure to comply 

with a Public Spaces 

Protection Order 

S 67/68 Anti-Social 

Behaviour, Crime and 

Policing Act 2014 

£75 £100 £1,000 

Unlawful repairs / 

sale of vehicle on 

roads 

s 3/4/6(1) Clean 

Neighbourhoods and 

Environment Act 2005 

£75 £100 £2,500 

Depositing litter s 87/88 Environmental 

Protection Act 1990 

£50 £75 £2,500 

Unauthorised 

distribution of free 

printed matter 

Schedule 3A £50 £75 £2,500 

Failure to produce 

authority (waste 

carrier’s licence) 

s 5/5B Control of 1989 

Pollution (Amendment) 

Act 1989 

£300 Amount 

fixed at 

£300 

£5,000 

Failure to furnish 

documentation 

S 34(5) / 34A 

Environmental 

£300 Amount 

fixed at 

£5,000 

Page 31



 

10 
 

(waste transfer 

notes) 

Protection Act 1990 

and regulation 35(6) 

Waste (England and 

Wales) Regulations 

2011 

£300 

Failure to remove 

dog faeces from land 

forthwith 

s 59 Clean 

Neighbourhoods and 

Environment Act 2005 

£60 £80 £1,000 

Not putting, and 

keeping, a dog on a 

lead when directed 

to do so by an 

authorised officer 

s 59 Clean 

Neighbourhoods and 

Environment Act 2005 

£60 £80 £1,000 

Permitting a dog to 

enter land from 

which dogs are 

excluded 

s 59 Clean 

Neighbourhoods and 

Environment Act 2005 

£60 £80 £1,000 

Not keeping a dog 

on a lead in a 

designated area 

s 59 Clean 

Neighbourhoods and 

Environment Act 2005 

£60 £80 £1,000 

 

Page 32



 

11 
 

Appendix B: Payment by Instalments 

Offence Fine Monthly Instalments 

1st  2nd 3rd  

Unlawful repairs / sale 

of vehicles on roads  
£100 £40 £30 £30 

Abandoning a vehicle £200 £75 £75 £50 

Depositing litter  £75 £25 £25 £25 

Failure to comply with a 

street litter control 

notice  

£100 
 

Not applicable 

Failure to comply with a 

community protection 

notice 

£100 £40 £30 £30 

Failure to comply with a 

community protection 

notice 

£100 £40 £30 £30 

Unauthorised 

distribution of free 

printed matter 

£75 £25 £25 £25 

Criminal Damage and 

fly-posting 
£75 £25 £25 £25 

Failure to produce 

authority (waste 

carrier’s licence)  

£300 
 

Not applicable 

Failure to furnish 

documentation (waste 

transfer notes) 

£300 
 

Not applicable 

Failure to remove dog 

faeces from land 

forthwith 

£80 £30 £25 £25 

Not putting, and 

keeping, a dog on a 
£80 £30 £25 £25 

Page 33



 

12 
 

lead when directed to 

do so by an authorised 

officer 

Permitting a dog to 

enter land from which 

dogs are excluded 

£80 £30 £25 £25 

Not keeping a dog on a 

lead in a designated 

area 

£80 £30 £25 £25 

 

Page 34



 

Items for Consideration 

 Briefing: re Change of Governance and Scrutiny Arrangements of Your Moorlands/Your Housing 

 Subsidised Bus Review 

 Joint governance of the Police and Fire and Rescue services in Staffordshire 

 High Schools in the Moorlands as a whole (Closure of Room 21 at Leek High School, funding,  redundancy of teachers, 
impact and mental health support) 

 Care Homes, Nursing Homes &  Domiciliary Care   
 

 

 
Community Overview & Scrutiny Panel - Work Programme 2017/18 

 

Date Items for Agenda 

  

3 July 2017 Grant Funding – Esther Jones 
Team Leader, Staffordshire Moorlands and ESF Voluntary Sector Advisor 

 Biddulph Public Spaces Protection Order 

  

11 September 2017 Safeguarding Annual Report 

 Policy on Enforcement of Environmental Crimes 

  

20 November 2017  

  

29 January 2018  

  

19 March 2018  

 

Key Organisations to Invite/ Schedule Annually 

Police and Crime Commissioner & Operational Annual Update 

Fire Service Annual Update 

Citizens Advice Bureau Annual Update 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To Approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	4 Report of the Chairman of the Police and Crime Panel.
	7 Safeguarding Annual Report.
	8 Policy on Enforcement of Environmental Crimes.
	8a. Appendix A - DRAFT Policy on Environmental Enforcement

	9 Work Programme

